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Administrative Information 
 
Restrictions on access:  Researchers must complete and sign a User Declaration form before 

access is granted to materials from the Institute of National Remembrance (Instytut Pamięci 
Narodowej). 

 
Restrictions on reproduction and use:   

1. Each researcher using the materials obtained from the Institute of National Remembrance 
(IPN) or materials whose originals belong to the IPN must complete the registration 
procedure required by USHMM. 
2. Publication or reproduction of documents (in the original language, in facsimile form or in 
the form of a translation of an excerpt or of the entire document) or making them available 
to a third party in any form requires the written consent of the Institute of National 
Remembrance. The use of an excerpt defined as the fair use right to quote does not require 
obtaining consent. 
3. Researchers assume all responsibility for the use of materials that belong to the Institute 
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4. References to documents that belong to the Institute of National Remembrance must cite 
the Institute of National Remembrance as the owner of the original documents and include 
the full reference citation of the Institute of National Remembrance in the citations. 

 
Preferred bibliographic citation: Group reference, group name, extreme dates, archive name. 
The owner of the original documents (IPN, ref. XXXXX) 
 
Preferred footnote/endnote citation:  Archive name, group reference, group name, extreme dates, 
information identifying the documents (original documents' reference; IPN, ref. XXXXX) 
 
Acquisition Information:  Purchased from the Instytut Pamięci Narodowej - Komisja Ścigania  
Zbrodni przeciwko Narodowi Polskiemu, Poland.  Forms part of the Claims Conference International 
Holocaust Documentation Archive at the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum.  This archive 
consists of documentation whose reproduction and/or acquisition was made possible with funding 
from the Conference on Jewish Material Claims Against Germany. 
 
Custodial History 
 
Existence and location of originals:  

The original files and the copyright to them are held by the Institute of National 
Remembrance - Commission for the Prosecution of Crimes against the Polish Nation 
(Institute of National Remembrance), ul. Wotoska 7, Warsaw 02-675, Poland. Phone no. + 48 
22 581 85 00.  
 
More information about this collection and other materials in the possession of the Institute 
of National Remembrance, including archival finding aids from the Archives of the Institute of 
National Remembrance, is available at their website: https://ipn.gov.pl 

 
Processing History:  Aleksandra B. Borecka, January 2014 
 
Biographical Note 
 
The Institute of National Remembrance - Commission for the Prosecution of Crimes against the 
Polish Nation (IPN) was established by the Polish Parliament on December 18, 1998 with a special 
bill. The Institute is headed by the President whose post is independent of the state authorities. The 
President of the IPN is elected for a five-year term. The Institute started its activities on July 1, 2000. 
The headquarters of the Institute of National Remembrance is located in Warsaw. There are also 
eleven Branch Offices of the IPN, established in the cities where Appellate Courts are located, and 
seven Delegations throughout Poland. The IPN is responsible for gathering, assessing, disclosing and 
custody of the documentation created between July 22, 1944 and December 31, 1989 by Polish 
security agencies. The documentation would also include records regarding the Communist, Nazi and 
other crimes committed against Polish citizens in the period from September 1, 1939 to December 
31, 1989, as well as political repressions carried out by officials of the former Polish investigative and 
justice organs in that time. The documentation concerning the activities of the security organs is also 
the subject of interest of the IPN. Another major responsibility of the Institute is to investigate 
Communist and Nazi crimes as well as war crimes and crimes against humanity and peace. The IPN 
investigates crimes against people of Polish origin, as well as Polish citizens of other origin and other 
citizens who were harmed in the Polish territories. 
 
Scope and Content of Collection 
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Contains selected files of the Sąd Okręgowy w Łodzi (District Court in Łódź) during the years 1945-
1956. These trials refer to the Decree of August 31, 1944 (“Sierpniówka”), issued by the Polski 
Komitet Wyzwolenia Narodowego (PKWN), concerning the punishment of war criminals guilty of 
murders and persecution of civilians and prisoners of war, and the punishment of traitors to the 
Polish Nation.  “Sierpniówka” was one of the world's first legislation on liability for war crimes 
committed during World War II. This decree also applied to soldiers of the Home Army (Armia 
Krajowa) whom the Communist propaganda in the 40’s and 50’s attempted to portray as German 
collaborators. Microfilmed files refer to crimes committed against Jews and Poles by Germans and 
their collaborators during the German occupation. 
 
System of Arrangement 
 
Records are arranged in the original order of their acquisition from the source archive. The museum 
has acquired only selected records from Institute of National Remembrance (Instytut Pamięci 
Narodowej-Komisja Ścigania Zbrodni przeciwko Narodowi Polskiemu, or IPN). More information 
about this collection and other materials in the possession of the Institute of National Remembrance, 
including archival finding aids from the Archives of the Institute of National Remembrance, is 
available at the website: https://ipn.gov.pl 
 
This collection is arranged alphabetically by the defendant surnames, and court case numbers. 
 
Indexing Terms 
 
Biebow, Hans, 1902-1947--Trials, litigation, etc. 
Polski Komitet Wyzwolenia Narodowego. 
Łódź (Poland) Sąd Okręgowy--Trials, litigation, etc. 
World War, 1939-1945--Destruction and pillage--Poland. 
World War, 1939-1945--Atrocities--Investigations. 
World War, 1939-1945--Collaborationists--Poland. 
Jews--Crimes against--Poland--Łódź--Registers. 
Polish people--Legal status, laws, etc.--Poland--History. 
War crime trials--Poland--Łódź  
War criminals--Legal status, laws, etc.--Poland--Łódź. 
War victims--Legal status, laws, etc.--Poland--Łódź  
War criminals--Government policy--Poland. 
Prisoners of war--Poland--Łódź. 
Criminal justice, Administration of--Poland--Łódź.  
Communism--Poland--History--20th century. 
Holocaust, Jewish (1939-1945)—Poland. 
Łódź (Poland)--Politics and government--1945-1980--Sources. 
Trials. 
Protocols. 
 
 

Reel List 

 

Reel Number File Number 

1  GK 261/1 720, 724, 3, 4, 5, 436 

2  GK 261/2 436, 400, 30, 31, 32 
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3  GK 261/3 32, 33, 9, 580, 592,  

4  GK 261/4 13, 142, 445, 609, 

5  GK 261/5 609, 44, 555, 40, 212, 682, 329 

6  GK 261/6 329, 255, 461, 172, 399 

7  GK 261/7 161, 648, 581, 141 

8  GK 261/8 49, 12, 162, 26, 27,  

9  GK 261/9 629, 223, 214, 598, 127, 319,  

10  GK 261/10 319, 415, 123, 604, 177, 421, 548 

11  GK 261/11 548, 144, 173, 150, 529, 570, 330 

12  GK 261/12 428, 418, 642, 409, 25 

13  GK 261/13 25, 324, 476, 15, 34 

14  GK 261/14 35, 36, 36a, 37, 607 

15  GK 261/15 29, 490, 735, 588, 292 

16  GK 261/16 292, 66, 446, 269, 654 

17  GK 261/17 115, 246, 10, 300 

18  GK 261/18 300, 593 

19  GK 261/19 593, 542 

20  GK 261/20 542, 23, 24 

 

 

 

CONTAINER LIST 

Author: Instytut Pamięci Narodowej 

In Polish and English 

 

Reel 261/1: 

GK 261/ 720 Antonowicz Jan, Antonowicz Maria ( Antonowicz  był konfidentem   gestapo w Łodzi  
nr V43:86  pod  pseudonimem „Antek”  wydawał  w ręce Gestapo  szereg  członków PPR  m.in. A. 
Gawryszczaka , St. Pietrasiaka  i komendanta GL Florczaka ps „Hardy” straconych potem w 
więzieniu  oraz M. Architekta , J. Kmiecińskiego, J. Brandta, S. Kaczmarka , J.Leśniaka A. 
Wandachowicza,  Cebertowicza wywiezionych następnie do KL, gdzie Wandachowicz  i Leśniak  
zmarli ; M. Antonowicz  pomagała mężowi, donosząc mu, że H. Cegieło  zarejestrowany  jako  
konfident Gestapo  uchyla się  od współpracy  uciekając  z Łodzi, S. Jędrys  pozostaje  bez pracy i 
utrzymuje  kontakt z oddziałami  partyzanckimi  oraz, że J. Chmielewski  należy do  organizacji  
podziemnej),  (1943-1944), 1944-1947, 1950 , 1957, k. 344+138,  
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GK 261/ 724 Bartosch Antoni (w czasie okupacji  jako członek S.A. pełnił  służbę wartowniczą  
przy getcie  w Łodzi , przez co działał  na szkodę  państwa polskiego  i ludności  cywilnej) 1946-
1951, k. 52,  

 
GK 261/ 3, 4, 5 Biebow Hans (od 1 października 1940r. do 1945r. w Łodzi  jako 
kierownik „Ghettoverwaltung”  uczestniczył  w planowanym  wyniszczaniu  
ludności  pochodzenia  żydowskiego, własnoręcznie  rozstrzeliwał, torturował 
Żydów i rabował  ich  mienie) 1946-1947, k. 78+65+182,  

 
GK 261/ 436 Borenstein Marian, Kon Abram, Widawski Zygmunt (Żydzi, w latach 1944 –1945  w 
obozie filialnym obozu koncentracyjnego Gross- Rosen  w Görliz bili i znęcali  się  nad 
współwięźniami ), 1946-1955, k. 185+269, t. I 

 
Reel 261/2: 

 
GK 261/ 436 a Borenstein Marian, Kon Abram, Widawski Zygmunt (Żydzi, w latach 1944 –1945  w 
obozie filialnym obozu koncentracyjnego Gross- Rosen  w Görliz bili i znęcali  się  nad 
współwięźniami ), 1946-1955, k. 185+269,  
 
GK 261/ 400 Buchholz Paulina (w okresie  od 1942 –1943 w Ostrowie Wielkopolskim  i Pleszewie  
jako strażniczka więzienna znęcała się nad więźniarkami, bijąc je pałką lub motyką, targała za 
włosy, zmuszała do prac fizycznych przekraczających ich siły oraz zmniejszając więźniarkom ich 
racje żywnościowe ) 1948-1949, k. 93,  
 
GK 261/ 30, 31, 32 Bucholz Erich, Ebeling Hermann  i  inni (w latach 1939-1945 na terenie 
województwa łódzkiego  jako  żandarmi 31 batalionu  niemieckiej policji stacjonującego  w Łodzi  
brali  udział  w dokonywaniu zabójstw osób spośród  ludności  cywilnej  i jeńców wojennych  w 
samym czasie  i miejscu  brali  udział  wysiedleniach  aresztowaniach  i wywożeniu  ludności 
cywilnej  do  obozów  koncentracyjnych  i Zagłady), 1947-1955, k. 114+158+195+375+fotografie, 
part I 

 
Reel 261/3: 

 
GK 261/ 30, 31, 32 Bucholz Erich, Ebeling Hermann  i  inni (w latach 1939-1945 na terenie 
województwa łódzkiego  jako  żandarmi 31 batalionu  niemieckiej policji stacjonującego  w Łodzi  
brali  udział  w dokonywaniu zabójstw osób spośród  ludności  cywilnej  i jeńców wojennych  w 
samym czasie  i miejscu  brali  udział  wysiedleniach  aresztowaniach  i wywożeniu  ludności 
cywilnej  do  obozów  koncentracyjnych  i Zagłady), 1947-1955, k. 114+158+195+375+fotografie, 
part II 
 
GK 261/ 9 Chudy Józef ( w 1944r.  na terenie obozu Belsen Bergen  pełnił  
funkcje kapo) 1945-1947, k. 65,  
 
GK 261/ 580 Chwiałkowski Jan ( oskarżony  o to, że w okresie od 1940r. do stycznia 1945r. w 
Łodzi jako  funkcjonariusz policji  kryminalnej Kripo – poszukiwał  Ignacego Hieronima 
Lubińskiego  ściganego za dostarczanie  żywności do łódzkiego getta, wziął  go za zakładnika, a 
następnie pobił  w czasie przesłuchania, brał  udział  w dokonywaniu  rewizji w mieszkaniach 
żydowskich  wraz z niemiecką policją  w poszukiwaniu  przedmiotów wartościowych- 
uniewinniony ), 1948-1950, k. 58+21+26,  
 
GK 261/ 592, 592a Cieciura Zofia (w okresie od 18 do 25 grudnia 1944 r.  jako agentka  Gestapo  
w Łodzi  zarejestrowana  pod numerem 2349 wskazała  gestapo A. Jurczaka  jako osobę 
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pochodzenia żydowskiego, na skutek czego  musiał się ukrywać, zadenuncjowała S. Lunyzia  jako 
słuchającemu  radio, B. Gajewskiego  jako  uchylającemu się od pracy, a także  Swiszczakai  jako 
udzielającego schronienia Gągalskiemu), 1943-1944, 1945 –1955 k. 109+266,  

 
Reel 261/4: 

 
GK 261/ 13 Czarnulla Erich, Seifert Franz (w latach 1940-1944  jako członkowie  kierownictwa  
obozu  zagłady – Ghetto-Łódź brali  udział  w masowym wyniszczeniu  ludności żydowskiej) 1945-
1950, k. 359+2 fotografie,  
 
GK 261/ 142, 142a Dingeldein Ernst ( od 1940 r do 1945r.  na terenie obozów Neuengamme – 
Hamburg  i Drütte-Wattenstadt  jako  kapo i Lagerältester znęcał się nad więźniami i bił ich) 1945-
1957, k. 124,  
 
GK 261/ 445, 445a, 445b Duleczus Julian  vel Dołajczuk Hilko (w latach 1941-43 w Baryłowce, 
Beresteczku  i innych  miejscowościach  województwa  wołyńskiego jako komendant policji 
ukraińskiej w Baryłowce brał udział w zabójstwach i pogromach ludności polskiej i żydowskiej), 
1947-1955, k. 60+77,  
 
GK 261/ 609 Fronczek Antoni (w czasie  okupacji  jako  konfident Gestapo  w Łodzi   wydał  szereg  
członków   polskich organizacji konspiracyjnych m.in. ZWZ, POW, AK, wskazał  na T. Sikorskiego i  
policjanta niemieckiego, że  wyrabiają  Polakom  dowody  osobiste, zadenuncjował, że J. W. 
Skrzypiński wraz  pewnym Niemcem  Starkiem wyrabiają  Polakom   karty pracy) 1941-`943, 
1947-1948, 1950, 1950, 1968, 1969, k. 333, part I 

 
Reel 261/5: 
 

GK 261/ 609 Fronczek Antoni (w czasie  okupacji  jako  konfident Gestapo  w Łodzi   wydał  szereg  
członków   polskich organizacji konspiracyjnych m.in. ZWZ, POW, AK, wskazał  na T. Sikorskiego i  
policjanta niemieckiego, że  wyrabiają  Polakom  dowody  osobiste, zadenuncjował, że J. W. 
Skrzypiński wraz  pewnym Niemcem  Starkiem wyrabiają  Polakom   karty pracy) 1941-`943, 
1947-1948, 1950, 1950, 1968, 1969, k. 333, part II 

 
GK 261/ 44 Frydman Mieczysław (od 1940r. do 1944r. w Łodzi jako członek policji żydowskiej  w 
getcie bił i ścigał osoby zajmujące się  nielegalnym handlem), 1945-1947, k. 89,  
 
GK 261/ 555 Glatzman Abram (oskarżony  o to, że w latach 1944- 1945 w obozie  
koncentracyjnym w Gliwicach  brał  udział w znęcaniu się i prześladowaniu więźniów: Chila 
Najmana, Abrama Milewskiego, Dawida Menczynko i innych  bijąc  ich i  meldując o ich  
rzekomych  uchybieniach  blokowemu,  aby skazać ich na dalsze nieuniknione tortury oraz 
zmniejszając im  przy tym  samowolnie racje  żywnościowe, uniewinniony),1946-1947,  k. 
89+52+25,  
 
GK 261/ 40 Głoba vel Głodza Michał (w okresie 1942-1944 w Kłodyczewie  koło  Baranowicz  jako 
członek tzw. Służby Bezpieczeństwa  brał  udział w egzekucjach  wykonywanych  na ludności 
cywilnej), 1945-1966, k. 162,  
 
GK 261/ 212 Guzicki Stanisław (w czasie  okupacji  niemieckiej  na terenie powiatu łaskiego  
wydał żandarmerii  niemieckiej  dwie osoby pochodzenia żydowskiego a także  przeprowadzał  
rewizję u Polaków ), 1947-1950, k. 117,  
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GK 261/ 682 Hassenmeier Otton (w czasie okupacji  niemieckiej jako żandarm niemiecki  w Łodzi   
brał  udział  w aresztowaniu H.Cederbauma) 1946-1947, k. 109,  
 
GK 261/ 329 Heindreich Maks Karol (w czasie okupacji w latach 1940-1941 w 
Ozorkowie k/Łodzi jako Kreishauptstelleleiter de NSDAP  znęcał się nad 
Polakami i Żydami, przywłaszczał sobie mienie tych ostatnich, zabił Żydówkę i 
jej dziecko; w latach 1944-1945 na terenie  gminy Sobótka pow. Łeczycki jako 
Kreishauptstelleleiter der NSDAP w Łęczycy i tzw. Abschnittsführer 
szykanował robotników polskich i znęcał się nad nimi), 1947-1955, k. 226, part 
I 

 
Reel 261/6: 
 

GK 261/ 329 Heindreich Maks Karol (w czasie okupacji w latach 1940-1941 w 
Ozorkowie k/Łodzi jako Kreishauptstelleleiter de NSDAP  znęcał się nad 
Polakami i Żydami, przywłaszczał sobie mienie tych ostatnich, zabił Żydówkę i 
jej dziecko; w latach 1944-1945 na terenie  gminy Sobótka pow. Łeczycki jako 
Kreishauptstelleleiter der NSDAP w Łęczycy i tzw. Abschnittsführer 
szykanował robotników polskich i znęcał się nad nimi), 1947-1955, k. 226, part 
II  

 
GK 261/ 255 Helman Wolf (w latach 1942 –1943 w obozie pracy  przymusowej  w Skarżysku 
Kamiennej  będąc  posługaczem  w szpitalu  obozowym  brał  udział w selekcjach  i zabójstwach  
dokonywanych na współwięźniach, zabierał i przywłaszczał sobie garderobę współwięźniów) 
1945-1948, k. 246,  

 
 

GK 261/ 461, 461a, 461b Henkiel  Edmund (w czasie okupacji  w Łodzi   brał udział  w zabójstwie 
Żyda  oraz znęcał się  nad  ludnością  pochodzenia polskiego), 1947-1955, k. 128+59+80,  

 
GK 261/ 172 Jankus Józef (w czasie okupacji niemieckiej denuncjował  Polaków do żandarmerii 
niemieckiej, w latach 1939-1940 w Łodzi  bił  Żydów ) 1946-1950, k. 167,  

 
GK 261/ 399 Jung Gustaw (w okresie  do stycznia 1945r.  na terenach  okupowanych przez 
Niemców należał do SS i jako członek tej  organizacji  działał  na szkodę  ludności cywilnej  biorąc 
udział  w egzekucji 100 Polaków w Zgierzu,   uczestniczył w aresztowaniu, łapakach i wysiedlaniu  
ludności  z ich gospodarstw a także  drogą szantażu  wymuszał dobytek i żywność ), 1945 –1949, 
k. 201,  

 
Reel 261/7: 
 

GK 261/ 161 Kaczyska Stanisław ( w latach 1942-1944 w Gross Rosen brał udział w zabójstwach 
więźniach więźniów  oraz w bestialski sposób znęcał się nad nimi, w okresie od lipca 1944 do 
lutego 1945 r. w Halbau znęcał się nad więźniami m.in. zmuszał więźniów do odbywania z nim  
stosunków płciowych – opornych katował; podczas ewakuacji obozu Halbau do Belzen, brał  
udział w dokonywaniu zabójstw  wycieńczonych więźniów, także KL Bergen Belsen - skazany na 
KS), 1946-1950, k. 294,  

 
GK 261/ 648 Kanwiszer Teodor (w czasie okupacji  brał  udział w wysiedleniu Polaków i 
przesiedleniu getta z Pabianic , był członkiem S.A.) 1941,1946-1947, 1950, k. 68,  
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GK 261/ 581 Kazimierczak Władysław (w czasie okupacji niemieckiej  na terenie Berlina, Łodzi  i 
Kalisza  brał  udział  w dokonywaniu zabójstw osób cywilnych  oraz działał  na ich szkodę  w tym w 
szczególności  a) w latach 1942-1943 w Berlinie jako  tłumacz  w obozie pracy  bił i maltretował  
zesłanych   na roboty przymusowe Polaków, Rosjan i Ukraińców, b)  w tym samym czasie  i 
miejscu zastrzelił Rosjanina  o imieniu Zonia  oraz brał udział w  pościgu i zabójstwie 3 Polaków , 
c) w czasie  od 19  sierpnia 1944r. do 25 października  w Łodzi jako kapo w  obozie pracy 
przymusowej na Sikawie bił i znęcał się nad umieszczonymi tam Polakami, d)  począwszy od 23  
pażdziernika 1944r. w Łodzi  zarejestrowany jako  konfident gestapo, w czasie  od 24 października 
1944r. złożył doniesienia  na  Polaków  czym spowodował  rewizje i aresztowania wśród wielu 
osób- skazany na 8 lat i 6 miesięcy,  utratę  praw na 6 lat  i przepadek  mienia ), 1947-1950, k. 
313+85,  

 
GK 261/ 141, 141a Kempf Wilhelm (od 11 sierpnia 1943r. do 4 kwietnia 1945r. na terenie Rzeszy 
Niemieckiej  należał  do SS,  w obozach w Sachsenhausen, Buchenwald, Dora-Nadhausen bił i 
maltretował więźniów-skazany na KS) 1947-1949, k. 115,  

 
Reel 261/8: 
 
 

GK 261/ 49, 49a Kerl Hugo (podczas okupacji niemieckiej  na terenie powiatu łaskiego w Rzeszy 
Niemieckiej należał  do SS, jako  tzw. blockführer w obozie koncentracyjnym  w Dachau  
prześladował  więźniów) 1946-1956, k. 53+36,  

 
GK 261/ 12 Kern Ludwik (w latach 1942-1945 w Łodzi jako Kriminaloberssistant w Kripo oraz jako  
członek NSDAP  i SS znęcał  się Żydami- skazany za uniemożliwianie   ludności żydowskiej  
opuszczenie  getta łódzkiego), 1945-1949, k.193,  
 
GK 261/ 162, 162a, 162 b Keuck Walter Rudolf  (w okresie od 12. 10.1939r. do 15 września 
1942r. był komendantem Schupo w Łodzi- skazany za wydanie rozkazu  o użyciu broni  palnej  
przez Schupo przy strzeżeniu getta łódzkiego), 1946-1950, k. 156+77+26,  
 
GK 261/ 26, 27, 27a Kleindienst Alfred Rudolf (zwierzchnik  Kościoła ewangelicko-luterańskiego w 
Polsce  od 1939 r. do 1945r.  w Polsce denuncjował  i dostarczał  dowodów  obciążających  
duchownych  wyznania ewangelicko – augsburskiego  wskutek czego  wielu z nich  zostało  
umieszczonych  w obozach  koncentracyjnych  lub  zamordowanych, ekstr. ze strefy  
amerykańskiej  za  prześladowanie  księży  protestanckich  i wydawanie ich w ręce Gestapo ) 
1945-1948, k. 405,  
 

 
Reel 261/9: 
 
 

GK 261/ 629 König Reinhold (jako Blockleiter NSDAP w Łodzi na jesieni 1939 r wziął udział  wraz z 
Niemcem o nazwisku Zargenbaum w zatrzymaniu i doprowadzeniu  do Policji Żyda  o przezwisku 
„Bunuś”, będąc blockleiterem  polecił Stanisławowi Kalińskiemu   jako  niepracującemu  zgłosić 
się do Urzędu  Pracy  oraz  meldować się u niego co drugi dzień  ponadto zbierał datki na bliżej 
nieokreślony cel, bezzasadnie pobił  Polaka    o nieustalonym nazwisku), 1946-1947, 1950, k. 64,  

 
GK 261/ 223 Kolasiński Stefan (w roku  1944r. w obozie Ebensee jako  kapo znęcał się  nad 
więźniami 1947-1950 , k. 151,  
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GK 261/ 214 Kołodziejczyk Stanisław ( w 1943 r. w Łodzi  jako  komendant  sali więzienia w 
Radogoszczy  bił  i maltretował  więźniów), 1947-1950, k. 119,  

 
GK 261/ 598 Krajn Leon (Lajb) (w styczniu 1944r.  w getcie w Łodzi  ujął ukrywającą się Lolę  
Staszewską, który została  wywieziona do obozu) 1948-1952, 1954, k. 282,  

 
GK 261/ 127, 127a Krauze Ryszard (w czasie okupacji  niemieckiej  w Łodzi  jako wicedyrektor  
Elektrowni  Miejskiej współpracował  z gestapo m.in. denuncjując zatrudnionych w zakładzie  
Polaków, 13 października 1939r. w porozumieniu  z gestapo zorganizował  na terenie elektrowni  
masowe aresztowania z czego 13 osób zostało osadzonych w obozie koncentracyjnym, większość 
zginęła), 1940-1948, k. 121+158+fotografia,   
 
GK 261/ 319 Krauze Władysław ( w 1942r. w Łodzi  ujął  prześladowanego i poszukiwanego przez 
władze obywatela polskiego  pochodzenia żydowskiego Jerzego Bluma, który  po aresztowaniu  
zginął  w getcie w Piotrkowie ) 1946-1949, k. 128+78,  

 
Reel 261/10: 
 

GK 261/ 319a Krauze Władysław ( w 1942r. w Łodzi  ujął  prześladowanego i poszukiwanego 
przez władze obywatela polskiego  pochodzenia żydowskiego Jerzego Bluma, który  po 
aresztowaniu  zginął  w getcie w Piotrkowie ) 1946-1949, k. 128+78,  

 
GK 261/ 415 Lange Rudolf (w  1942 r. w powiecie łaskim  brał  udział w zabójstwie 10 Żydów, w 
1943 r. w Zelowie brał udział  w łapankach i wysiedlaniu ludności cywilnej), 1947-1956, k. 300,  
 
GK 261/ 123 Larysz Gertruda (w okresie pomiędzy 1944r. a początkiem 1945 r. jako blokowa w 
obozie koncentracyjnym Kruc w Stuttgartcie wykazywała wyjątkowy sadyzm w znęcaniu się nad 
więźniami  żydowskim, brał czynny udział w selekcjach ofiar przeznaczonych na zagładę) 1947-
1950, k. 206,  

 
GK 261/ 604 Lewandowski Władysław (w czasie okupacji  jako policjant granatowy  w Kluszkach  
brał  udział w rozstrzeliwaniu St. Zielińskiego, Litmanowej  i jej dzieci oraz wielu  innych Żydów  o 
nieustalonych nazwiskach, brał  udział  w aresztowaniu H. Krzysztoforskiego  i jego  żony, 
J.Wątorowskiego, M. Dobruszka, S. Strubla i wielu innych, brał  udział w dokonywaniu  rewizji, 
odbieraniu paczek  różnym osobom, łapankach i biciu Polaków ) 1948-1949, k. 163,  

 
GK 261/ 177 Ługowski Jerzy (do sierpnia 1944r. na terenie Grodna  brał  udział  w rozstrzeliwaniu  
jeńców  radzieckich  i Żydów oraz w znęcaniu się  nad  ludnością  cywilną), 1946-1948, k. 117,  

 
GK 261/ 421 Łukasik Helena (w 1942 r. w Koluszkach  wydała  władzom niemieckim  
ukrywającego  się Żyda ), 1947-1949, k. 150,  

 
GK 261/ 548 Makowska Olga (w okresie  od 16  marca 1943 r. do 19 stycznia 1945 r.  na terenie  
powiatu łódzkiego  i  na terenie Łodzi  jako członkini SS pełniąc jednocześnie  funkcje wachmana 
w obozie koncentracyjnym  na Sikawie  oraz  pełniąc funkcje urzędnicze  biła, znęcała i lżyła  
kobiety znajdujące się w obozie, wysiedlała z mieszkań i przywłaszczał  sobie mienie  należące do 
obywatelki polskiej Sondki- skazana  na 5 lat , 3 lata utraty praw i  przepadek mienia) k. 78+37, 
part I 

 
Reel 261/11: 
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GK 261/ 548 Makowska Olga (w okresie  od 16  marca 1943 r. do 19 stycznia 1945 r.  na terenie  
powiatu łódzkiego  i  na terenie Łodzi  jako członkini SS pełniąc jednocześnie  funkcje wachmana 
w obozie koncentracyjnym  na Sikawie  oraz  pełniąc funkcje urzędnicze  biła, znęcała i lżyła  
kobiety znajdujące się w obozie, wysiedlała z mieszkań i przywłaszczał  sobie mienie  należące do 
obywatelki polskiej Sondki- skazana  na 5 lat , 3 lata utraty praw i  przepadek mienia) k. 78+37, 
part II 

 
GK 261/ 144 Malysz Rudolf Andreas (od marca 1940 r.  do maja 1945 r.  na terenie Rzeszy  i Polski  
należał do SS, od lipca 1940 r. do  maja 1945 r. w obozie koncentracyjnym  w Oświęcimiu jako 
wartownik   brał udział w dokonywaniu zabójstw na więźniach- skazany na KS), 1946-1950, k. 91,  

 
GK 261/ 173, 173a Mayer Hans Georg (w latach 1939- 1945 w Pabianicach i Maczkowie koło 
Gdańska był  członkiem NSDAP, S.A. i SS Schutzstaffeln, w latach  1940 –1942 w Pabianicach  brał 
udział w zabójstwach  ludności  cywilnej- skazany  za uniemożliwianie   ucieczek ludności 
żydowskiej  oraz za przynależność do SS),1941-1948, k. 128+92+fotografia,  
 
GK 261/ 150, 150a Messler Martin (w okresie od 1940 r. do 1945 r.  jako Lager i Oberlagerführer  
obozów Kuhnendorf  i „Stadion”  znęcał się nad więźniami) 1945-1955, k. 50+36,  
 
GK 261/ 529, 529a, 529b Mielczarek Adam (w czasie 1939-1940  znęcał  się nad Żydami 
zatrudnionymi przymusowo w Monopolu Tytoniowym w Łodzi), 1948-1949, k. 42+49+41,  

 
GK 261/ 570 Norynberg Jan (oskarżony o to, że  w czasie 1939-1945 w Łodzi jako  strażnik  
niemiecki  bił znęcał się  nad więźniami  osadzonymi  więzieniu w Radogoszczy, uniewinniony) 
1947-1948, k. 37+43,  

 
GK 261/ 330, 330a Nau Roman (od 31 maja 1943 r. do 19 stycznia 1945 r. był zarejestrowanym  
konfidentem gestapo w Łodzi nr V 43:80, zadenuncjował m.in.  członków organizacji podziemnej 
PPR, z których wielu zostało zesłanych do obozów koncentracyjnych, gdzie kilku zmarło) 1943-
1953, k. 97+96,  

 
Reel 261/12: 
 

GK 261/ 428, 428a Nowak Franciszek (w latach 1944 -1945  w Koluszkach  wydał władzom 
niemieckim  ukrywającego się Żyda, był konfidentem gestapo), 1947-1954), k. 61+6,  

 
GK 261/ 418 Nowakowski Włodzmierz vel Krasucki (od 1942 r. do 1945 r.  na terenie obozów  
koncentracyjnych w Majdanku, Gross –Rosen  i Bautzen  pełniąc  funkcje  blokowego  i kapo  bił 
więźniów) 1947-1950 ) k. 171,  

 
GK 261/ 642 Nowosielska Anna vel Mueller Helga vel Glinej (w czasie okupacji  niemieckiej  
oskarżyła M.Mitelman, iż trudni się  nielegalnym  handlem  złomem i żywnością  a jej córka Alina  
jest żydowskiego pochodzenia), 1945-1947, k. 127,  

 
GK 261/ 409 Orenta vel Orentas Józef ( w okresie od 1941 do 1944  na terenie Kowna  jako 
policjantt  litewski „szaulis”  brał  udział w dokonywaniu zabójstw osób cywilnych ), 1948-1949, k. 
240+fotografia,  

 
GK 261/ 25 Ossenkopp Henryk, Schlette Fryderyk (31  maja 1944 r. w Lappelw (Norwegia) brali   
udział w zastrzeleniu  8 Polaków  zbiegłych z domów  organizacji Todta z miejscowości koło 
Megaarden) 1946-1949, k. 277, part I 
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Reel 261/13: 
 

GK 261/ 25 Ossenkopp Henryk, Schlette Fryderyk (31  maja 1944 r. w Lappelw (Norwegia) brali   
udział w zastrzeleniu  8 Polaków  zbiegłych z domów  organizacji Todta z miejscowości koło 
Megaarden) 1946-1949, k. 277, part II 
 
 
GK 261/ 324, 324 a, 324b Ostrowska z d. Kabulska Stanisława (w latach  1942-1943 w Łodzi  
pełniła  funkcję konfidentki gestapo i wydawał w ręce gestapo członków polskich organizacji 
konspiracyjnych) 1943-1956, k. 186+36+56,  
 
GK 261/ 476 Owczarek Adam (w 1940 r.  w Głownie  wydał  w ręce niemieckie 2 Polaków   
oskarżając ich o pomaganie Żydom), 1947-1950, k.101,  
 
GK 261/ 15 Pelikan Adolf ( w czasie okupacji  jako   komendant  obozu  w Unerlüss  brał  udział w 
zabójstwach  więźniów ) 1945-1949, k. 210,  
 
GK 261/ 34-37 Pelzhausen Walter (w latach 1940- 1945 jako  komendant więzienia Radogoszcz w 
Łodzi  bił  i maltretował  a także zabijał więźniów, uczestniczył w spaleniu  w dniach 17/18 
stycznia 1945r.  gmachu więzienia wraz ze znajdującymi się tam więźniami- skazany na KS) 1944, 
1945-1952, k. 834+fotografia,  

 
Reek 261/14: 
 

GK 261/ 35-37 Pelzhausen Walter (w latach 1940- 1945 jako  komendant więzienia Radogoszcz w 
Łodzi  bił  i maltretował  a także zabijał więźniów, uczestniczył w spaleniu  w dniach 17/18 
stycznia 1945r.  gmachu więzienia wraz ze znajdującymi się tam więźniami- skazany na KS) 1944, 
1945-1952, k. 834+fotografia,  

 
GK 261/ 607 Piekarski Leopold (w czasie okupacji niemieckiej  jako konfident Gestapo  w Lodzi  
zarejestrowany  pod numerem  W580W. 594J.128 wskazał Gestapo, że J. Kulda , J. Bogacz, S. 
Urbański, Kędzierski , J. Kunowa i M. Nowak  należą  do polskich organizacji  konspiracyjnych; 
Sikorski , S. Oborski, B. Przednojski, T. Jankowski, Butkiewiczowa, J.Uczakowska , J. Dubilas i S. 
Gębka   wykazują  wrogie nastawienie wobec Niemiec; E. Mędrzecki , E. Grzelak , Z. Kazimierczak, 
F. Szobela, Perdes, Bukowski  słuchają  bądź rozpowszechniają  zakazane audycje radiowe; Gajda  
i Cichy  są  komunistami; J. Malinkiewicz, N. Skowroński, R. Kuśmierkiewicz   brali udział  w 
działalności przeciw Hitlerowi; A. Ziółkowski fotografował  lotniska niemieckie; S. Zagórski  jest 
pochodzenia żydowskiego; H. Mazur  brał  udział  w powstaniu  warszawskim; R. Karpik  ukrywa   
aparat nadawczy  poza tym   wskazał  Gestapo 11  Polaków , którzy  uchylali się  od  obowiązku 
pracy  przymusowej, 6 Polaków   zajmujących się szmuglem   lub nielegalnym  handlem) 1943-
1944, 1946, 1948-1949, 1952, 1957, 1959, k. 776, [akta niekompletne, brak drugiego tomu]  

 
Reel 261/15: 
 

GK 261/ 29, 29a Piller Walter (oskarżony o to, że:  1. we wrześniu 1939 r. jako  członek 
Einsatzkommando nr 11  brał  udział  w ujmowaniu  Polaków  podejrzanych o przynależność do 
organizacji politycznych, 2.  od listopada 1943r.  do maja 1944r.  jako członek tzw. 
Wetterkommando  brał  udział  w dokonywaniu  zabójstw  przymusowo zatrudnionych  przy  
ekshumacji osób straconych  przez władze niemieckie w 1939r. 3. od maja 1944 r. do 17 stycznia 
1945 r. w Chełmnie  nad Nerem  jak z-ca  komendanta  Sonderkommando Kulmhof brał  udział w 
zabójstwach Żydów; 4. od 1938 r.  do września 1939 r,   na terenie III Rzeszy, a od września 1939 
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r. do  stycznia 1945 r.  na terenie  Polski  był członkiem gestapo; KS- wyrok wykonano) 1945-1948, 
1950, 1958, k. 218,  
 
 
GK 261/ 490, 490a Płusa Stanisław (w  latach 1940- 1945 w Gusen  jak o pomocnik kapo znęcał 
się  nad współwięźniami), 1949-1950, k. 40+22,  
 
GK 261/ 735 Rusowicz Józef (jako  policjant  niemiecki  w Wołożynie  powiat Mołodeczno  brał  
czynny udział  w liwidacji getta, zastrzelił Majera J., córkę  Siminickiego  oraz Ratwieckiego; w 
1943 r. we wsi Dora  wziął  udział w pacyfikacji, w wyniku czego  spalono kościół  wraz ze 
znajdującymi się wewnątrz  kilkuset osobami, wziął  udział w aresztowaniu  żony  R. Famińskiego i 
ks. Uchalskiego, 1946-1949, k. 179,  
 
GK 261/ 588 Schmidt Alfred (jako Oberscharführer Waffen SS  i Kammandoführer X  Kommando  
w KL Buchenwald, oraz  będąc  członkiem  załóg Kdo  Dora w KL Mittelbau brał  udział  w 
dokonywaniu  zabójstw osób spośród ludności  cywilnej  i jeńców wojennych  na terenie obozów  
koncentracyjnych, znęcał się nad  osobami spośród  ludności cywilnej  i jeńcami wojennymi m.in.  
Polakami  w obu obozach), 1945-1947, k. 120,  
 
GK 261/ 292, 292a, 292b Schmiedt Stefan Wilhelm (od września 1939 r. do 
maj 1945 r.  jako  komendant  policji  na terenie Polski  i krajów  okupowanych 
przez niemieckie siły zbrojne  brał udział  w akcjach  przesiedleńczych  oraz 
sporządzał  spisy  osób  chorych przeznaczonych do zagłady ) , 1943-1948, k. 
73+123+133,   
 
 

Reel 261/16: 
 

GK 261/ 292b Schmiedt Stefan Wilhelm (od września 1939 r. do maj 1945 
r.  jako  komendant  policji  na terenie Polski  i krajów  okupowanych przez 
niemieckie siły zbrojne  brał udział  w akcjach  przesiedleńczych  oraz 
sporządzał  spisy  osób  chorych przeznaczonych do zagłady ) , 1943-1948, 
k. 73+123+133,   

 
 
GK 261/ 66 Sobczak Władysław (w  lipcu  i sierpniu 1944 r.  jako tzw.  porządkowy  w obozie  
koncentracyjnym  w Radogoszczy w Łodzi  bił  więźniów) 1946-1950 , k. 79,  

 
 

GK 261/ 446, 446a, 446b Sobczak z domu Błoch Helena (w latach 1940-1945 w Piotrkowie 
wydawała  Polaków i Żydów w ręce władz niemieckich ), 1944-1949 k. 206+20+252,   
 
GK 261/ 269, 269 a  Spätlich Karl Robert Juliusz ( 25 marca 1945r. w Herdecke  brał  udział  jako 
dowódca  oddziału egzekucyjnego w rozstrzelaniu NN Polaka),  1947-1948, k. 313,  

 
GK 261/ 654 Stankiewicz Michał (jako blokowy w KL Gross –Rosen, następnie Lagerältester w Kdo 
Gablonz   pobił  4 Polaków) 1946-1947, k. 55,  

 
Reel 261/17: 
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GK 261/ 115, 115a Szpitz Herman (w czasie okupacji  niemieckiej w Łodzi  jako członek 
żydowskiej służby porządkowej w getcie łódzkim  bił podległych mu obywateli żydowskich),1947-
1948, k. 114+124,  
 
GK 261/ 246 Walter Artur (w okresie okupacji niemieckiej na terenie  powiatu łaskiego jako 
członek S.A. w tymże czasie brał udział w wysiedlaniu  ludności żydowskiej oraz znęcaniu się nad  
ludnością polską ), 1947-1948, k. 178,  
 
GK 261/ 10 Wittenberg Willy (do 9 maja 1945 r. na terenie powiatu Szlezwik  brał  udział  w 
dokonywaniu  zabójstw  jeńców wojennych  oraz w znęcaniu się nad ludności cywilną ) 1945-
1947, k. 420,  
 
GK 261/  300, 300a Wodnicki Henryk (w czasie  od 4 listopada 1943 r.  do 19 stycznia 1945 r.   na 
terenie Łodzi  jako zerejestrowany i wypróbowany  agent gestapo zadenuncjował  129 obywateli  
polskich  z których część po aresztowaniu wysłano do obozów koncentracyjnych, skąd trzy osoby  
nie powróciły) 1943-1950, k. 311, part I 

 
Reel 261/18: 
 

GK 261/  300, 300a Wodnicki Henryk (w czasie  od 4 listopada 1943 r.  do 19 stycznia 1945 r.   na 
terenie Łodzi  jako zerejestrowany i wypróbowany  agent gestapo zadenuncjował  129 obywateli  
polskich  z których część po aresztowaniu wysłano do obozów koncentracyjnych, skąd trzy osoby  
nie powróciły) 1943-1950, k. 311, part II 
 
GK 261/ 593, 593 a, 593b, 593c, 593d Załoga zakładów  zbrojeniowych Lohmann-Werke  w 
Pabianicach, później Herford (Niemcy) – Harald Sudeck – dyrektor, członek dyrekcji Walter 
Thalenhorst, Schreiber Erich Franz, Sternberg Wolfgang, nadzorca Boeken August, Korniki Kurt 
Hans, Rosenberg Rudolf, Mundt Edmund, Reuter Fritz, Heinrich Max - kierownik  warsztatów,  
którzy obarczali  zatrudnionych tam  przymusowo  Polaków do nadmierną pracą często  
przekraczającą 12- godzinne dniówki , bili i znęcali się nad  zatrudnionymi, H. Sudeck  dokonywał  
zaboru  urządzeń fabrycznych i wywoził  te  urządzenia  do Niemiec,  a także zmusił  ok. 330  
obywateli polskich  do wyjazdu do Niemiec) 1943, 1947-1956, 1976, k. 1331,  

 
Reel 261/19: 
 

GK 261/ 593, 593 a, 593b, 593c, 593d Załoga zakładów  zbrojeniowych Lohmann-Werke  w 
Pabianicach, później Herford (Niemcy) – Harald Sudeck – dyrektor, członek dyrekcji Walter 
Thalenhorst, Schreiber Erich Franz, Sternberg Wolfgang, nadzorca Boeken August, Korniki Kurt 
Hans, Rosenberg Rudolf, Mundt Edmund, Reuter Fritz, Heinrich Max - kierownik  warsztatów,  
którzy obarczali  zatrudnionych tam  przymusowo  Polaków do nadmierną pracą często  
przekraczającą 12- godzinne dniówki , bili i znęcali się nad  zatrudnionymi, H. Sudeck  dokonywał  
zaboru  urządzeń fabrycznych i wywoził  te  urządzenia  do Niemiec,  a także zmusił  ok. 330  
obywateli polskich  do wyjazdu do Niemiec) 1943, 1947-1956, 1976, k. 1331,  

 
GK 261/ 542 Zukriegel Wilhelm (w czasie od 11  lutego 1944r. do 4 stycznia 1945r.  jako  
funkcjonariusz gestapo  w Łodzi  działał na szkodę osób poszukiwanych i prześladowanych  przez 
okupanta niemieckiego  w tym m.in. Henryka i Kazimierza Wawrzyniaków w wyniku czego H. 
Wawrzyniak  został  osadzony  w bozie koncentracyjnym a także spowodował  zdekonspirowanie  
3 sowieckich  partyzantów,  zawłaszczał sobie mienie aresztowanych przez Gestapo – skazany na 
KS  i utratę wszystkich praw oraz konfiskatę mienia na zawsze ), 1945-1948, k. 60+58+356,  

 
Reel 261/20: 
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GK 261/ 542 Zukriegel Wilhelm (w czasie od 11  lutego 1944r. do 4 stycznia 1945r.  jako  
funkcjonariusz gestapo  w Łodzi  działał na szkodę osób poszukiwanych i prześladowanych  przez 
okupanta niemieckiego  w tym m.in. Henryka i Kazimierza Wawrzyniaków w wyniku czego H. 
Wawrzyniak  został  osadzony  w bozie koncentracyjnym a także spowodował  zdekonspirowanie  
3 sowieckich  partyzantów,  zawłaszczał sobie mienie aresztowanych przez Gestapo – skazany na 
KS  i utratę wszystkich praw oraz konfiskatę mienia na zawsze ), 1945-1948, k. 60+58+356,  
 
GK 261/ 23, 24 Zunker Winfried Joachim, Czech Hermann (Zunker w latach  1944-1945 w 
Zgorzelcu  jako Lagerführer  tamtejszego  obozu pracy, z-ca Kdo Görlitz i następnie 
Uberscharführer SS znęcał  się nad więźniami i zabijał ich- skazany na KS; H.Czech  w latach 1944-
1945 jako Lageraelteste  tamtejszego   obozu pracy znęcał  się nad więźniami i okradał ich z 
przydziałów żywnościowych) 1946-1950, k. 440,  
 
Inventory in English 
 

Reel 1: 

GK 261/720 Antonowicz Jan, Antonowicz Maria ( Antonowicz  was the Gestapo informer in Łodź, 
his No V43:86, denounced many members of PPR (The Polish Labor Party), a/o: A. Gawryszczak , 
St. Pietrasiak  and the chief officer of GL (The Folk Gujard), Florczak, nick-named „Hardy” 
(„Proud”), exerminated later in prison, and: M. Architekt , J. Kmieciński, J. Brandt, S. Kaczmarek , 
J.Leśniak A. Wandachowicz, Cebertowicz, send later to a concentration camp, where 
Wandachowicz  and Leśniak  died ; M. Antonowicz  helped her husband informing him that H. 
Cegieło, registered as ta Gestapo informer, avoided to co-operate and escaped from Łodź,  S. 
Jędrys  remained unepmploeyd and keeps contacting partisan troops, and that J. 
Chmielewskiwas a member of an underground organization),  (1943-1944), 1944-1947, 1950 , 
1957, pp. 344+138,  

 

GK 261/724  Bartosch Antoni (during the occupation, as a member of S.A., was serving as a guard 
at the Ghetto Litzmannstadt, acting against the Polish nation and civilians), 1946-1951, pp. 52,  
 
GK 261/3, 4, 5 Biebow Hans (from October 1,1940 through 1945, in Łodź, as 
the foreman of „Ghettoverwaltung”, participated in the planned 
extermination of Jews, shot them with his own hands, tortured them and 
robbed their property), 1946-1947, pp. 78+65+182,  

 

GK 261/436, 436 a Borenstein Marian, Kon Abram, Widawski Zygmunt (Jews, during 1944 –1945, 
in the sub-camp of KL Gross- Rosen, i Görliz, were beating and persecuting their fellow 
prisoners), 1946-1955, pp. 185+269,  
 

Reel 2: 
 

GK 261/436, 436 a Borenstein Marian, Kon Abram, Widawski Zygmunt (Jews, during 1944 –1945, 
in the sub-camp of KL Gross- Rosen, i Görliz, were beating and persecuting their fellow 
prisoners), 1946-1955, pp. 185+269,  
 
 
GK 261/400 Buchholz Paulina (during 1942 –1943, in Ostrow Wielkopolski and in Pleszewo, as a 
prison guard, persecuted women prisoners, beating them with a baton or a hoe, pulled their hair, 
forced to toil more than they could bear and reduced their food rations), 1948-1949, pp. 93,  
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GK 261/30, 31, 32, 33 Bucholz Erich, Ebeling Hermann and others (during 1939-1945, on the 
territory of the County of Łódź, as gendarmes of the 31d Battalion of the German police staying 
in Łódź, participated in the killing of civilians and prisoners of war; in the same place and time 
participated in deportations, arresting and sending civilians to concentration camps and death 
camps), 1947-1955, pp. 114+158+195+375+photos,  

 
Reel 3: 
 

GK 261/30, 31, 32, 33 Bucholz Erich, Ebeling Hermann and others (during 1939-1945, on the 
territory of the County of Łódź, as gendarmes of the 31d Battalion of the German police staying 
in Łódź, participated in the killing of civilians and prisoners of war; in the same place and time 
participated in deportations, arresting and sending civilians to concentration camps and death 
camps), 1947-1955, pp. 114+158+195+375+photos,  
 
GK 261/9 Chudy Józef (was a prisoners foreman in 1944, in KL Belsen Bergen) 
1945-1947, pp. 65,  
 
GK 261/580 Chwiałkowski Jan (accused that, during 1940-1945 (January), in Łodź, as a Kripo 
police officer was chasing Ignacy Hieronim Lubiński, wanted for delivering food the the Gjhetto 
Litzmannstadt, took his as a hostage, beat during the investigation, participated in the searchings 
in Jewish flats for valuables, together with the German police – found not guilty), 1948-1950, pp. 
58+21+26,  
 
GK 261/592, 592a Cieciura Zofia (from December 18 to 25,1944, as the Gestapo informer in Łodź, 
registered under the No 2349, denounced A. Jurczak as a Jew to Gestapo, so he had to hide, 
denounced S. Lunyź as listening to the radio, B. Gajewski, as avoiding work, as well as Świszczak, 
as offering a shelter to Gągalski), 1943-1944, 1945 –1955 k. 109+266,  

 
Reel 4: 
 

GK 261/13 Czarnulla Erich, Seifert Franz (during 1940-1944, as members of the management of 
the death camp in Łódź participated in mass extermination of Jews), 1945-1950, pp. 359+2 
photos,  

 
GK 261/142, 142a Dingeldein Ernst (from 1940 through 1945, on the territory of KL 
Neuengamme – Hamburg  and KL Drütte-Wattenstadt, as a prisoners foreman and Lagerältester, 
persecuted the prisoners and beat them) 1945-1957, pp. 124,  

 
 

GK 261/445, 445a, 445b Duleczus Julian, alias Dołajczuk Hilko (during 1941-43, in Baryłowka, 
Beresteczeku and other places of the Wołyń Province, as the chief officer of the Unkrainian 
police in Baryłowka, participated in the murders and pogroms of Polish and Jewish civilians), 
1947-1955, pp. 60+77,  
 
GK 261/609 Fronczek Antoni (as an informer of Gestapo in Łódź during the occupation, 
denounced a lot of members of the Polish underground, a/o ZWZ (The Union of Military 
Combat), POW, (The Polish Military Organization), AK (The Polish Home Army), denounced T. 
Sikorskiego and a German policaman as producing fake Ausweissen, denounced Skrzypiński to 
produce fake Artbeitskarten, together with the German named Stark) 1941-`943, 1947-1948, 
1950, 1950, 1968, 1969, pp. 333,  
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Reel 5: 
 

GK 261/609 Fronczek Antoni (as an informer of Gestapo in Łódź during the occupation, 
denounced a lot of members of the Polish underground, a/o ZWZ (The Union of Military 
Combat), POW, (The Polish Military Organization), AK (The Polish Home Army), denounced T. 
Sikorskiego and a German policaman as producing fake Ausweissen, denounced Skrzypiński to 
produce fake Artbeitskarten, together with the German named Stark) 1941-1943, 1947-1948, 
1950, 1950, 1968, 1969, pp. 333,  
 
 
GK 261/44 Frydman Mieczysław (from 1940 through 1944, in Łodź, as a member of the Jewish 
police in the ghetto, was beating and chasing people who were trading illegally), 1945-1947, pp. 
89,  

 
GK 261/555 Glatzman Abram (accused of persecuting and torturing prisoners of KL in Gliwice 
during 1944- 1945: Chil Najman, Abram Milewski, Dawid Menczynko and the others, beating 
them, denouncing about their alleged faults to a Blockfuehrer, in order to make them tortured 
and reduce their food rations on his own initiative, found not guilty), 1946-1947, pp. 89+52+25,  

 
GK 261/40 Głoba alias Głodza Michał (during1942-1944, in Kłodyczew near Baranowicze, as a 
member of the so-called Security, participated in executions of civilians), 1945-1966, pp. 162,  

 
GK 261/212 Guzicki Stanisław (during the German occupation, on the territory of the County of 
Łask, denounced two Jews to German gendarmes and organized searching in the houses of 
Poles), 1947-1950, pp. 117,  
 
GK 261/682 Hassenmeier Otton (during the German occupation, as the German gendarme in 
Łodź, participated in the arresting of H. Cederbaum) 1946-1947, pp. 109,  

 
 

GK 261/329 Heindreich Maks Karol (as a Kreishauptstelleleiter der NSDAP  in 
Ozorków near Łódź, a during the occupation, iIn 1940-1941, persecuted Poles 
and Jews, waw taking their property away, killed a Jewish woman and her 
child; as a Kreishauptstelleleiter der NSDAP in Łęczyca and a so-called 
Abschnittsführer on the area of the Sobótka, the Łęczyca commune in 1944-
1945 persecuted Polish laborers and tormented them. 
 

 
 
Reel 6: 
 
GK 261/329 Heindreich Maks Karol (as a Kreishauptstelleleiter der NSDAP  in 
Ozorków near Łódź, a during the occupation, iIn 1940-1941, persecuted Poles 
and Jews, waw taking their property away, killed a Jewish woman and her 
child; as a Kreishauptstelleleiter der NSDAP in Łęczyca and a so-called 
Abschnittsführer on the area of the Sobótka, the Łęczyca commune in 1944-
1945 persecuted Polish laborers and tormented them. 
 
GK 261/255 Helman Wolf (during 1942 –1943, in the forced labor camp in Skarżysko Kamienna, 
being an orderly in the camp hospital, participated in selections and killing of his fellow prisoners, 
and took away their clothes) 1945-1948, pp. 246,  
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GK 261/461, 461a, 461b Henkiel  Edmund (during the occupation in Łodź, participated in the 
killing of a Jew and persecuted Jews and Poles), 1947-1955, pp. 128+59+80,  
 
GK 261/172 Jankus Józef (during the German occupation, denounced Poles to the German 
gendarmes, used to persecute and beat Jews in Łódź during 1939-1940) 1946-1950, pp. 167,  
 
GK 261/399 Jung Gustaw (till January, 1945, on the territories occupied by Germans, was a 
member of SS and acted against civilians, participating in the execution of 100 Poles in Zgierz, 
participated in arresting, roundups and deportations of peoples from their households and, by 
blackmail, forced them to give away their belongings and food), 1945 –1949, pp. 201,  
 
Reel 7: 
 
GK 261/161 Kaczyska Stanisław (during1942-1944, in Kl Gross Rosen, participated in the killing of 
prisoners and persecuted them cruelly (from July,1944 through February 1945, persecuted 
prisoners in Halbau, forced them to have sexual intercourses with him – tortured them when 
refused; participated in the killing of weakened prisoners during the evacuation of KL Halbau to 
Belzen, and KL Bergen-Belsen – sentenced to death), 1946-1950, pp. 294,  
 
GK 261/648 Kanwiszer Teodor (during the occupation participated in deportations of Poles and 
the deportation of Jews from the ghetto in Pabianice; was a member of  S.A.) 1941,1946-1947, 
1950, pp. 68,  
 
GK 261/581 Kazimierczak Władysław (during the German occupation, in Berlin, Łodź and Kalisz, 
participated in the killing of civilians and acted against them, particularly : a/ during 1942-1943, 
in Berlin, as an interpreter in a labor camp, was beating and torturing Poles, Russians and 
Ukraininas sent for forced labor, b)shot a Russian called Zonia in the same time and place and 
participated in the chase and killing of 3 Poles, c) from August 19,1944 through October 25, 1945, 
in Łodź, as the prisoners foreman in the labor camp on Sikawa, was beating and persecuting 
Poles working there, d) starting from October 24, 1944, in Łodź, registered as the Gestapo 
informer, was denouncing Polish civilians, and thus caused the searchings and arresting among 
many people – sentenced to 8 years and 6 months imprisonment, the loss of citizen rights for 6 
years and the loss of property), 1947-1950, pp. 313+85,  
 
GK 261/141, 141a Kempf Wilhelm (from August11, 1943 through April 4, 1945, on the territory 
of Reich III, was a member of SS, in KL Sachsenhausen, KL Buchenwald, KL Dora-Nadhausen was 
beating and torturing prisoners – sentenced to death) 1947-1949, pp. 115,  
 
 
Reel 8: 
 
GK 261/49, 49a Kerl Hugo (during the German occupation, on the territory of the Countr of Łask 
in Reich III, was a member of SS, persecuted prisoners in KL Dachau as Blockführer) 1946-1956, 
pp. 53+36,  
 
GK 261/12 Kern Ludwik (during 1942-1945, in w Łodź, as Kriminaloberssistant w Kripo and a 
member of NSDAP and SS, persecuted Jews, sentenced for preventing the Jews to leave Ghetto 
Litzmannstadt), 1945-1949, pp.193,  
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GK 261/162, 162a, 162 b Keuck Walter Rudolf (from October 1, 1939 through September 
15,1942, was the chief officer of Schupo in Łódź, sentenced for giving order to use weapon by 
Schupo while guarding the Ghetto Litzmannstadt), 1946-1950, pp. 156+77+26,  
 
GK 261/26, 27, 27a Kleindienst Alfred Rudolf (the superior of the Evangelic Lutheran Church in 
Poland from 1939 through 1945, denounced and accused the Evancegic-Augsburgian clergy in 
Poland; in the result of that many of them were sent to concentration camps or killed, extradited 
from the American zone for persecuting Protestant priests and denouncing them to Gestapo ), 
1945-1948, pp. 405,  
 
Reel 9: 
 
GK 261/629 König Reinhold (as a Blockleiter of NSDAP in Łodź in fall 1939, participated, together 
with a German named Zargenbaum, in the detention and leading of a Jew nick-named „Bonuś” to 
the police, as a Blockleiter, ordered Stanisławow Kaliński, as an unempolyed, to visit Arbeitsamt 
every second day, was collecting contribution for an unknown purpose, beat a Pole of unknown 
name) 1946-1947, 1950, pp. 64,  
 
GK 261/223 Kolasiński Stefan (in 1944, as a prisoners foreman in the camp of Ebensee, 
persecuted this fellow prisoners), 1947-1950, pp. 151,  
 
GK 261/214 Kołodziejczyk Stanisław (in 1943 in Łodź, as a chief officer of the prison cell in 
Radogoszcz, was beating and torturing prisoners), 1947-1950, pp. 119,  
 
GK 261/598 Krajn Leon (Lajb) (in January 1944, in the Ghetto Litzmannstadt, seized the hiding 
Jewish woman, Lola  Staszewska, who was then sent to a concentration camp), 1948-1952, 1954, 
pp 282,  
 
GK 261/127, 127a Krauze Ryszard (during the German occupation in Łodź, as a deputy director of 
the Municipal  Electric Station, collaborated with Gestapo, a/o denouncing Poles working there, 
on October 13,1939, together with Gestapo, organized mass aresting in the electric station, 13 
arrested people were sent to a concentration camp, most of them died), 1940-1948, pp. 121+158 
+ one photo,   
 
GK 261/319, 319a Krauze Władysław (in Łódź, in 942, seized a persecuted and wanted Jew, Jerzy 
Blum, who was then arrested and died in the ghetto in Piotrków), 1946-1949, pp. 128+78,  
 
Reel 10: 
 
GK 261/319, 319a Krauze Władysław (in Łódź, in 942, seized a persecuted and wanted Jew, Jerzy 
Blum, who was then arrested and died in the ghetto in Piotrków), 1946-1949, pp. 128+78,  
 
GK 261/415 Lange Rudolf (in 1942, in the County of Łask, participated in the killing of 10 Jews, in 
1943, in Zelowo, participated in round-ups and deportations of civilians), 1947-1956, pp. 300,  
 
GK 261/123 Larysz Gertruda (between 1944 and early 1945, as a Blockfuehrerin in KL Kruc in  
Stuttgart, persecuted Jewish prisoners in a very sadistic way, participated in the selections of 
Jewish prisoners to be exterminated), 1947-1950, pp. 206,  
 
GK 261/604 Lewandowski Władysław (during the occupation, a an officer of the blue police in 
Kluszki, participated in the shooting of St. Zieliński, Mrs. Litmanowa and her children and many 
other Jews of unknown names, participated in the arresting of H. Krzysztoforski and his wife, 
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J.Wątorowski, M. Dobruszek,  S. Strubel and many others, participated in searchings, taking away 
parcels form different people, roundups and beating of Polish civilians) 1948-1949, pp. 163,  
 
GK 261/177 Ługowski Jerzy (since August, 1944, in Grodno, where he participated in shooting 
Soviet prisoners of war and Jews, as well as prosecuting civilians), 1946-1948, pp. 117,  
 
GK 261/421 Łukasik Helena (in Koluszki, in 1942, denounced a hiding Jew to the German 
authorities), 1947-1949, pp. 150,  
 
GK 261/548 Makowska Olga (from march 16, 1943 through January 19, 1945 on the territory of 
the County of Łódź and the city of Łódź, as a member of SS, being both, Wachman in KL on 
Sikawa and a clerk, was beating, insulting and persecuting the women prisoners, throw away a 
Polish woman, Sondka from her flat and took away her belongings, sentenced to 5 years 
imprisonment, 3 years of losso f her citizen rights and the loss of her property), pp. 78+37,  
 
Reel 11: 
 
GK 261/548 Makowska Olga (from march 16, 1943 through January 19, 1945 on the territory of 
the County of Łódź and the city of Łódź, as a member of SS, being both, Wachman in KL on 
Sikawa and a clerk, was beating, insulting and persecuting the women prisoners, throw away a 
Polish woman, Sondka from her flat and took away her belongings, sentenced to 5 years 
imprisonment, 3 years of losso f her citizen rights and the loss of her property), pp. 78+37,  
 
GK 261/144 Malysz Rudolf Andreas (from March, 1940 through May, 1945, in Reich III and in 
Poland, was a member of  SS, from July, 1940 through May, 194, in Kl Auschwitz, as a guard, 
participated in the killing of prisoners – sentenced to death), 1946-1950, pp. 91,  
 
GK 261/173, 173a Mayer Hans Georg (during1939- 1945, in Pabianice and Maczków near 
Gdańsk, was a member of NSDAP, S.A. and SS Schutzstaffeln, during 1940 –1942, in w Pabianice, 
where he participated in the killing of civilians – sentenced for preventing Jews to escape and 
being a member of SS), 1941-1948, pp. 128+92+ one photo,  
 
GK 261/150, 150a Messler Martin (from 1940 through 1945, persecuted and tortured prisoners 
being the Lager and Oberlagerführer in KL Kuhnendorf  and „Stadion” (“Stadium), 1945-1955, pp. 
50+36,  
 
GK 261/529, 529a, 529b Mielczarek Adam (during 1939-1940  persecuted the forced laborers – 
Jews, who worked in the Tobbaco Plant in Łodź), 1948-1949, pp. 42+49+41,  
 
GK 261/570 Norynberg Jan (accused that, during 1939-1945, as a German warden in Łódź, was 
beating and persecuting the prisoners in Radogoszcz, found not guilty) 1947-1948, pp. 37+43,  
 
GK 261/330, 330a Nau Roman (from May 31,1943 through January 19,1945, was the registered 
informed of Gestapo No V 43.30, and denounced members of the Polish underground 
organizations, a/o PPR (Polish Labor Party), many of which were then sent to concentration 
camps, where some of them died), 1943-1953, pp. 97+96,  
 
Reel 12 
 
GK 261/428, 428a Nowak Franciszek (during 1944 –1945, in Koluszki, denounded a hiding Jew to 
the German authorities, was a Gestapo informer), 1947-1954), pp. 61+6,  
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GK 261/418 Nowakowski Włodzmierz alias Krasucki (from 1942 through 1945, as a Blockfuehrer 
and prisoners foreman in KL Majdanek, KL Gross –Rosen and KL Bautzen, was beating prisoners), 
1947-1950), pp. 171,  
 
GK 261/642 Nowosielska Anna alias Mueller Helga alias Glinej (during the German occupation 
accused Mitelman of trading illegally with srcap metal and food and that her daughter, alina is a 
Jew), 1945-1947, pp. 127,  
 
GK 261/409 Orenta alias Orentas Józef (from 1941 through 1944, in Kowno, as a Lithuanian 
police officer, the so-called „szaulis”, participated in the killing of civilians),1948-1949, pp. 240 + a 
photo,  
 
GK 261/25 Ossenkopp Henryk, Schlette Fryderyk (on may 31, 1944, in Lappelw (Norway), 
participated in the shooting of 8 Poles who escaped from the houses belonging to the Todt 
organization in Megaarden) 1946-1949, pp. 277,  
 
Reel 13: 
 
GK 261/25 Ossenkopp Henryk, Schlette Fryderyk (on may 31, 1944, in Lappelw (Norway), 
participated in the shooting of 8 Poles who escaped from the houses belonging to the Todt 
organization in Megaarden) 1946-1949, pp. 277,  
 
GK 261/324, 324 a, 324b 4 a, 324b Ostrowska, maide name, Kabulska Stanisława (during 1942-
1943 in Łodź, was an informer of Gestapo and denounced members of the Polish underground 
organizations), 1943-1956, pp. 186+36+56,  
 
GK 261/476 Owczarek Adam (in 1940, in Głowno, denounced 2 Poles to Germans, accusing them 
for helping Jews), 1947-1950, pp.101,  
 
GK 261/15 Pelikan Adolf (during the occupation, as the chief officer in KL in Unerlüss, 
participated in the killing of prisoners), 1945-1949, pp. 210,  
 
GK 261/34-37 Pelzhausen Walter (during1940- 1945, as the chief officer of the prison in 
Radogoszcz near Łódź, was beating and torturing prisoners, participated in the burning of the 
prison building on January 17 and 18, 1945, together with the prisoners inside – sentenced to 
death), 1944, 1945-1952, pp. 834 + one photo,  
 
Reel 14: 
 
GK 261/34-37 Pelzhausen Walter (during1940- 1945, as the chief officer of the prison in 
Radogoszcz near Łódź, was beating and torturing prisoners, participated in the burning of the 
prison building on January 17 and 18, 1945, together with the prisoners inside – sentenced to 
death), 1944, 1945-1952, pp. 834 + one photo,  
 
GK 261/607 Piekarski Leopold (during the German occupation, as the Gestapo informer 
registered under the No W580W. 594J.128, denounced that J. Kulda , J. Bogacz, S. Urbański, 
Kędzierski , J. Kunowa i M. Nowak  należą  do polskich organizacji  konspiracyjnych; Sikorski , S. 
Oborski, B. Przednojski, T. Jankowski, Butkiewiczowa, J.Uczakowska , J. Dubilas i S. Gębka were 
manifesting hostile attitude towards Germans,  listened to or disseminated forbinned radio 
broadcast; Gajda  i Cichy  are commnists; J. Malinkiewicz, N. Skowroński, R. Kuśmierkiewicz   
participated in the activity against Hitler; A. Ziółkowski took photos of the German military 
airports, ; S. Zagórski  in a Jew; H. Mazur  participated in the Warsaw Uprising; R. Karpik was 
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hiding the broadcasting device, besides, he denounced 11 Poles to Gestapo, who tried to avoid 
forced labor, 6 Poles who were smuggling or trading illegally), 1943-1944, 1946, 1948-1949, 
1952, 1957, 1959, pp. 776, [incomplete files, no volume II]  
 
Reel 15 
 
GK 261/29, 29a Piller Walter (accused that, 1.  being a member of Einsatzkommando No 11 on 
September 1, 1939,  participated in seizing Poles suspected of activity in political organizations, 2.  
from November 1943 through May 1944, as a member of the so-called Wetterkommando, 
participated in the killing of forced laborers hired during the exhumation of people executed by 
the German authorities in 1939, 3. from May 1944 through January 17, 1945 , in Chełmno on 
Ner, as a deputy chief officer  in Sonderkommando Kulmhof, participated in the killing of Jews, 4. 
from 1938 through September 1939, on the territory of Reich III, and, from Sept. 1,1939 r. 
through January 1945, in Poland, was a member of Gestapo; sentenced to death and executed), 
1945-1948, 1950, 1958, pp. 218,  
 
GK 261/490, 490a Płusa Stanisław (during 1940- 1945, in KL w Gusen, a a helping hand to 
prisoners foreman, presecuted fellow prisoners), 1949-1950, pp. 40+22,  
 
GK 261/735 Rusowicz Józef (as a german police officer in Wołożyno, the County of  Mołodeczno, 
activelly participated in the liquidation of a ghetto, shot Majer J., a daughter of  Siminicki and a 
daughter of Ratwiecki; in 1943, participated in the pacification in the village of Dora, which 
resulted in burning of a church with several hundred people inside, participated in the arresting 
of the R. Famiński’s wife and Rev. Uchalski, 1946-1949, pp. 179,  
 
GK 261/588 Schmidt Alfred (as Oberscharführer Waffen SS  and Kammandoführer X  Kommando 
in KL Buchenwald, and, as the member of the crew in the Command Dora in KL Mittelbau, 
participated in the killing of people among civilians and prisoners of war on the territory of 
concentration camps, persecuted the civilians and prisoners of war, a/o Poles in both camps), 
1945-1947, pp. 120,  
 
GK 261/292, 292a, 292b Schmiedt Stefan Wilhelm (from September, 1939 toMay, 1945, as a 
chief police officer in Poland and other occupied by the German military forces, participated in 
deportations and made out the lists of the sick envisaged for extermination), 1943-1948, pp. 
73+123+133,   
 
Reel 16: 
 
GK 261/292, 292a, 292b Schmiedt Stefan Wilhelm (from September, 1939 toMay, 1945, as a 
chief police officer in Poland and other occupied by the German military forces, participated in 
deportations and made out the lists of the sick envisaged for extermination), 1943-1948, pp. 
73+123+133,   
 
GK 261/66 Sobczak Władysław (in July and August 1944, was beating prisoners as a so-called 
orderly in KL in Radogoszcz) 1946-1950, pp. 79,  
 
GK 261/446, 446a, 446b Sobczak, maiden name Błoch Helena (during 1940-1945, in Piotrków, 
was denouncig Poles and Jews to the German authorities), 1944-1949 pp. 206+20+252,  
 
GK 261/269, 269 a   Spätlich Karl Robert Juliusz ( on March 25, 1945 in Herdecke, being a chief 
officer of the execution squad, participated in the shooting to a Pole unknown by name), 1947-
1948, pp. 313,  
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GK 261/654 Stankiewicz Michał (as a Blockfuehrer in  KL Gross –Rosen, then, as Lagerältester w 
Kdo Gablonz, beat 2 Poles 1946-1947, pp. 55,  
 
 
 
 
 
Reel 17: 
 
GK 261/115, 115a Szpitz Herman (during the German occupation in Łodź, as an orderly in Ghetto 
Litzmannstadt, was beating Jews subordinating to him),1947-1948, pp. 114+124,  
 
GK 261/246 Walter Artur (during the occupation on the territory of the County of Łask, being a 
member of S.A., participated in the deportation of Jews and in the persecution of Polish civilians), 
1947-1948, pp. 178,  
 
GK 261/10 Wittenberg Willy (since May 09, 1945, on the territory of the Schlezwig County, 
participated in the killing of prisoners of war and in the persecution of civilians), 1945-1947, pp. 
420,  
 
GK 261/ 300, 300a, 300b Wodnicki Henryk (for November 4,1943 through January 19,1945, in 
Łódź, as a registered and tried informer of Gestapo, denounced 129 Polish citizens, part of 
whom, having been arrested, was sent to concentration camps. Three of them perished there), 
1943-1950, pp. 311,  
 
 
Reel 18: 
 
GK 261/ 300, 300a, 300b Wodnicki Henryk (for November 4,1943 through January 19,1945, in 
Łódź, as a registered and tried informer of Gestapo, denounced 129 Polish citizens, part of 
whom, having been arrested, was sent to concentration camps. Three of them perished there), 
1943-1950, pp. 311,  
 
GK 261/593, 593 a, 593b, 593c, 593d The crew of the Arm Factory, Lohmann-Werke in 
Pabianicach, later in Herford (Reich) – Harald Sudeck – the director, the member of 
management, Walter Thalenhorst, Schreiber Erich Franz, Sternberg Wolfgang, the foreman 
Boeken August, Korniki Kurt Hans, Rosenberg Rudolf, Mundt Edmund, Reuter Fritz, Heinrich Max 
– the workshop supervisor, who were making the Poles working there as forced labor, with the 
work they couldn’t bear, above 12 hours a day, were beating and persecting them, H. Sudeck  
was stealing the machinery and devices and sending them to Reich and forced ca 330  Polish 
citizens to go to Reich, 1943, 1947-1956, 1976, pp. 1331,  
 
Reel 19: 
 
GK 261/593, 593 a, 593b, 593c, 593d The crew of the Arm Factory, Lohmann-Werke in 
Pabianicach, later in Herford (Reich) – Harald Sudeck – the director, the member of 
management, Walter Thalenhorst, Schreiber Erich Franz, Sternberg Wolfgang, the foreman 
Boeken August, Korniki Kurt Hans, Rosenberg Rudolf, Mundt Edmund, Reuter Fritz, Heinrich Max 
– the workshop supervisor, who were making the Poles working there as forced labor, with the 
work they couldn’t bear, above 12 hours a day, were beating and persecting them, H. Sudeck  
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was stealing the machinery and devices and sending them to Reich and forced ca 330  Polish 
citizens to go to Reich, 1943, 1947-1956, 1976, pp. 1331,  
 
Zukriegel Wilhelm (from February 11, 1944 through January 4, 1945, as the officer of Gestapo in 
Łodź, acted against the people persecuted and wanted by the German occupants, including 
Henryka and Kazimierza, the Wawrzyniaks, due to which H. GK 261/542 Wawrzyniak was sent to 
a concentration camp, and contributed to the unmasking of  3 Soviet partisans, was robbing the 
belongings of those arrested by  Gestapo – sentenced to death and the loss of all citizen rights 
and the confiscation of his property), 1945-1948, pp. 60+58+356,  
 
Reel 20: 
 
GK 261/542 Zukriegel Wilhelm (from February 11, 1944 through January 4, 1945, as the officer of 
Gestapo in Łodź, acted against the people persecuted and wanted by the German occupants, 
including Henryka and Kazimierza, the Wawrzyniaks, due to which H. Wawrzyniak was sent to a 
concentration camp, and contributed to the unmasking of  3 Soviet partisans, was robbing the 
belongings of those arrested by  Gestapo – sentenced to death and the loss of all citizn rights and 
the confiscation of his property), 1945-1948, pp. 60+58+356,  
 
 
GK 261/23, 24 Zunker Winfried Joachim, Czech Hermann (Zunker, during 1944-1945, in 
Zgorzelec, as Lagerführer of the local labor camp, a deputy chief officer of Kdo Görlitz, then, 
Uberscharführer SS, persecuted the prisoners and killed them – sentenced to death;  H.Czech, 
during 1944-1945, as Lageraelteste of the local labor camp, persecuted the prisoners and robbed 
their food allowance), 1946-1950, pp. 440,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 


	GK 261/ 3, 4, 5 Biebow Hans (od 1 października 1940r. do 1945r. w Łodzi  jako kierownik „Ghettoverwaltung”  uczestniczył  w planowanym  wyniszczaniu  ludności  pochodzenia  żydowskiego, własnoręcznie  rozstrzeliwał, torturował Żydów i rabował  ich  mi...
	GK 261/3, 4, 5 Biebow Hans (from October 1,1940 through 1945, in Łodź, as the foreman of „Ghettoverwaltung”, participated in the planned extermination of Jews, shot them with his own hands, tortured them and robbed their property), 1946-1947, pp. 78+6...

